
CC Minutes 05‐07‐13 

City of Washington Terrace 
_________________________________________________ 

Minutes of a Regular City Council meeting 
held on May 7, 2013 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 
County of Weber, State of Utah 

 
                         

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT FOR WORK SESSION 
 
Mayor Mark C. Allen 
Council Member Mary Johnston 
Council Member Blair Brown 
Council Member Robert Jensen 
Council Member Scott Monsen  
Council Member Val Shupe 
City Manager Tom Hanson 
City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 
Finance Director Shari’ Garrett 
Public Works Director Steve Harris 
 
Others Present 
Lt. Kevin Burns 
 
1.     CITY COUNCIL BUDGET  WORK SESSION            6:00 P.M.                             
 
Garrett explained that some of the major changes in the budget are due to sequestration, 
economy, streets programs, Communities that Care Program, and property taxes (to include the 
estimated county additional property tax revenue which may help support underfunded streets 
operation and maintenance).  
Garrett explained that if the Council decides to raise property taxes to capture the county general 
purpose tax levy reduction, a truth-in-taxation process is required. Council Member Jensen stated 
that the $48,000 that may come from capturing the tax reduction is not enough. He stated that the 
city needs to look at the short term needs of the city and discussions need to be held concerning 
how the funds will be raised.  
Garrett stated that the LTAP streets condition study showed that the city needs to contribute 
$350,000 annually, where the city is now only contributing around $100,000 to road condition 
maintenance.  
Hanson explained that there are new changes to personnel to include benchmarking pay plan, 
health care, Communities that Care, and Fire Department volunteer wages. 
Hanson explained that the Redevelopment Agency (RDA) is expiring soon. Hanson noted that a 
future consideration will be level of service. 
Garrett stated that the revenue assumptions in the General Fund for 2014 to 2015 are that the city 
expects to see more growth in the commercial area, which means more building permits. Garrett 
stated that the 2014 assumption is a 3% growth, roughly $100,000.  



CC Minutes 05‐07‐13 

Council Member Brown stated that one way to capture growth in permits could be in the 
development of vacant land. He stated that many developers would like to build on the lots but it 
is a matter of what they can build. 
Garrett stated that T-Mobile has opted to dissolve the contract to lease an area to build a cell 
tower. The city had been receiving the lease payments of around $19,000 per year for several 
years. Garrett stated that the city has to be careful of becoming reliant on one time revenue 
sources versus on-going revenue sources.  
Garrett explained the general fund requirements. She stated that the requirements are comprised 
of personnel changes to include more fire shifts, wages, Communities that Care Program, 
benefits, and road maintenance. Council Member Johnston noted that Weber Human Services 
has agreed to take over the maintenance of the Communities that Care Program. Garrett stated 
that she will take the Communities that Care Program out of future budget documents. 
Garrett noted that it appears that there was a major drop in 2012 in the general fund, however the 
city transferred a large surplus into the capital fund.  
Garrett noted that capital project funds roll over from year to year, creating larger budget 
amounts in some years.  
Garrett stated that the RDA is funded off of property tax increments. The first is to expire is in 
2016 (the south east district by Adams). The second will be in 2018 to include the central 
business district.) Council Member Shupe inquired as to where the store money will be paid if 
the RDA is gone. Garrett explained that the requirements are being satisfied because the bank is 
in ownership of the store and has been paying the city which has been deposited to the RDA 
fund. 
Garrett stated that the general government fund balances are dwindling but this has been 
anticipated.  
Hanson stated that major concerns have been brought to Council through work sessions, budget 
work sessions, and documents. Hanson stated that the budget has been streamlined while 
maintaining the level of service. Hanson stated that if a major change in levels of service is 
expected, staff will bring concerns and suggestions to Council before making any changes.  He 
stated that any increases in utilities are to support the community at the highest level possible 
with the lowest fee possible. 
 
 
MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 
 
Mayor Mark C. Allen 
Council Member Mary Johnston 
Council Member Blair Brown 
Council Member Robert Jensen 
Council Member Scott Monsen - excused 
Council Member Val Shupe 
City Manager Tom Hanson 
City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 
Finance Director Shari’ Garrett 
Public Works Director Steve Harris 
Fire Chief Kasey Bush 
Weber County Sheriff Office Lt. Kevin Burns 



CC Minutes 05‐07‐13 

 
Others Present 
Charles and Reba Allen, Ann Booth                                       
 
2.     ROLL CALL                                               7:00 P.M 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4. WELCOME 
 
5.     CONSENT ITEMS 
 

5.1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
       5.2 APPROVAL OF APRIL 10 AND APRIL 16, 2013 MEETING MINUTES  
Items 5.1 and 5.2 approved by general consent. 
           
 6.     CITIZEN COMMENTS 
There were no citizen comments. 
 
 7.    COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE AND CONSIDERATION TO CITIZEN 
       COMMENTS 
Due to lack of citizen comments in item 6, item 7 is unnecessary. 
 
8.    NEW BUSINESS               
  
      8.1  PRESENTATION: FINANCE DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY REPORT 
Garrett noted that sales tax revenues came in higher than expected requiring a budget adjustment 
to be made. Sales tax projections for future years will be re-evaluated. Garrett stated that the 
water and sewer funds have been watched very closely. She stated that revenue for charges for 
services are not coming in as projected and stated that the rate model that was adopted is a riskier 
model because it is based on people using overages. 
 
      8.2  PRESENTATION: FIRE DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY REPORT 
Chief Bush noted that fire calls have been decreasing, however structure fires have risen within 
the last 5 months. He stated that the fires have all been contained with minimal damage to the 
homes. Council Member Brown inquired if the fires were in rental units. Bush stated that some 
of the fires were rental, and some were owner occupied. Bush stated medical call numbers have 
remained constant. Mayor Allen stated that he was on the scene of a small accident and noted 
that the response from the Sheriff’s Office and Fire Department was very quick. Bush noted that 
some of the grants that he has applied for have been affected by the sequestration. 
 
 
      8.3  MOTION/RESOLUTION 13-06: SECOND DISTRICT JUVENILLE COURT 
           GRAFFITI REMOVAL SERVICES       
   Hanson stated that the graffiti removal services is for two years and will cost $1000. 
 
 



CC Minutes 05‐07‐13 

Motion by Council Member Jensen 
Seconded by Council Member Shupe 

To approve Resolution 13-06 
Second District Juvenile Court Graffiti Removal Services 

Approved unanimously (4-0) 
Roll Call Vote 

 
 
      8.4  PRESENTATION: WEBER COUNTY LIBRARY PRESENTATION ON 
           THE WEBER COUNTY BOND ELECTION 
Scott Jones, the Asst. Director for the Weber County Library, presented the Weber County 
Library Plan to Council. He stated that the usage for libraries has increased over the years. 
He stated that the increased usage has put pressure on the libraries, especially the main library in 
Ogden. He stated that the infrastructure on many buildings is failing and continually requiring 
costly repairs. He stated that the main library has recently experienced flooding, electrical fires, 
and sump system failures. 
Jones stated that the Library Board’s capital plan will resolve current issues in a tightly 
integrated sequence. He stated that the project is expected to take 5 years to complete. He stated 
that the county has elected to have a by-mail election in June of 2013. He stated that the average 
cost of the bonds to residents will be $2.63 per month for homes valued at $161,000. Mayor 
Allen asked what the percentages are for passage. Jones stated that the surveys show that the 
bonds are highly supported (in the low 80’s). He stated that there has been great support from 
county officials. He stated that the final count will be June 25, 2013.  
Council Member Jensen clarified that this is a property tax. Registered voters will vote, but the 
property owners will pay the tax increase. 
 
9.      OLD BUSINESS 
 
      9.1  MOTION/RESOLUTION 13-07: INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH  
           UINTAH CITY FOR BUILDING INSPECTOR SERVICES  
Hanson stated that a total cost value has been put together for the Terrace building inspector to 
inspect and permit in Uintah City.  He stated that Uintah will match our fee structure. He stated 
that this is a year-to year agreement with a 90 day provision for either party to terminate. Hanson 
stated that the city will be compensated for what is done, stressing that there will be no 
subsidizing. Hanson stated that the hourly rate would be applied if services go beyond what is 
expected. Mayor Allen stated that he has heard positive feedback from the Mayor of Uintah on 
this agreement. 
 

Motion by Council Member Johnston 
Seconded by Council Member Jensen 

To approve Resolution 13-07 to 
Approve the Interlocal agreement with Uintah 

City for Building Inspector Services 
Approved unanimously (4-0) 

Roll Call Vote  
 



CC Minutes 05‐07‐13 

      9.2  MOTION/RESOLUTION 13-08: EXTENSION OF INTERLOCAL  
           AGREEMENT WITH WEBER COUNTY FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT  
           SERVICES 
Hanson stated that this is an extension of the current contract with approval of budget for law 
enforcement. 
Council Member Shupe made a motion to table the item until June, stating that he would like to 
see what other cities do with the contract. He stated that he would like to see the city use its’ 
resources to see what the city’s law enforcement needs are. He stated that he would like to put 
our resources together with other contracted cities and form a unified police department. Council 
Member Shupe stated that the unified police department is an option that he feels the contracted 
cities need to pursue. He stated that he is not opposed to the contract with the county because the 
residents need protection, but he does not want to be the first city to sign again with the county. 
He would like to see where the rest of the county, including the county commissioners, stand on 
the issue.  
Hanson stated that tabling the item will not affect the budget. 
 

Motion by Council Member Shupe 
Seconded by Council Member Brown 
to table the item to June 18, 2013 to  

review where other cities go with  
the contract.  

Approved unanimously (4-0) 
 
  
10.      COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF 
        * Council Member Brown stated that he feels that the attitude with the front staff   
          has approved and hopes that good customer service will continue.  
 
        * Council Member Jensen inquired on the completion date of the Rohmer Park  
          Project. Hanson stated that the May 25th completion date is on track. Council Member  
          Jensen suggested that a ribbon cutting ceremony be planned to bring attention to the  
          Project to promote what the city has done. Hanson stated that the city is planning a  
          ribbon cutting ceremony with R.A.M.P and also a news release. Mayor Allen noted  
          that baseball season will be in full swing during that time and many people will  
          be around to help with the festivities. 
 
        * Council Member Shupe stated that the park by the church in the south end is 
          not city owned nor controlled. He asked that Hanson explain to animal control   
          that it is not a city park and the city did not shut the park to residents. He wanted the  
          distinction known that the park is private property and the church has shut off an  
          entrance to the park in an attempt to curb vandalism. 
           
        * Mayor Allen stated that he has also heard positive feedback concerning the customer   
          service of the front office. He stated that he realized that the glass presents 
          a barrier, but is glad that the staff is safe. 
 



CC Minutes 05‐07‐13 

       
11.     ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 
Hanson stated that the Bids for the 450 West Project came in lower than expected. The bid was 
awarded to Staker Parsons for $670,000.  
 
Hanson stated that the Communities that Care Program will soon be managed by Weber Human 
Services. An addendum will be made to the Interlocal for the CTC Program. 
 
Mayor Allen gave an update on Pleasant View’s Mayor Clifford, stating that he attended his first 
Mayor’s meeting last night after an illness. 
         
12.     UPCOMING EVENTS         
       May 21st : Terrace Days Planning Meeting 5:30 p.m. 
       May 21st: Budget Work Session 6:00 p.m. 
       May 21st: Council Meeting 7:00 p.m.  
       May 30th: Planning Commission Meeting 7:00 p.m. 
               
13.     ADJOURN THE MEETING: MAYOR ALLEN 
Mayor Allen adjourned meeting at 8:04 p.m. 
 
 
__________________________________     ____________________________ 
Date approved                                 City Recorder 


